
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 
 
 

    
  
 
 
                      

                                                                               
 
   

AGENDA 
BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, April 24, 2012 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 
 
              9:00 AM Call to Order 
   Approval of Minutes    

 April 17, 2012 
   Review Agenda 
 

Consent Agenda  
  

Board of Equalization 
a. Reappointment of L Bateman to Board of Equalization 
Central Services 
b. Authorization to Purchase the Quest GroupWise Migrator for Exchange from CDW-G LLC 
Commissioners 
c. Setting Dates for 2013-2014 Biennium Budget Hearings 
d. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 125 
e. Payment Authorization to Design West Architects, PA for Architectural Services 
GIS 
f. Intergovernmental Cooperative Agreement w/City of Kennewick for Orthophotography 
Juvenile 
g. Contract Amendment w/Desertgreen Lawn and Tree Care, LLC 
Personnel 
h.  Employee of the Month Award 

   Public Works 
   i.   Amendment to Interlocal Agreement w/Franklin County for Engineering Services 
   j.   Plat Sign Plans Approval for The Ridge at Reata West 

Sheriff 
k. Contract Termination w/Keefe Commissary Network; Rescind Resolutions 08-1004 & 11-751 
l. Contract w/Keefe Group LLC for Inmate Commissary Goods 
WSU Cooperative Extension   
m. Appreciation Letter to WSU, Pullman Office 

 
9:05 AM Scheduled Business: 
 
  Feasibility Study for Moderate Risk Waste Facility – D Holmes  

Leo Bowman 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator 

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
CurrentUser
Text Box
to view items in detail, please click on highlighted area

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight



___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 
 

Agenda – Board of County Commissioners 
April 24, 2012 
Page Two 

   
 

Executive Session: 
 
  County Claim Discussion – R Lukson & B Perry 
 

Unscheduled Visitors 
   Board Assignment Update  

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us


 - 1 - 

MINUTES 
 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, April 17, 2012, 9:00 a.m. 
Commissioners’ Conference Room  

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 
 
 
Present: Chairman James Beaver 
  Commissioner  Shon Small 
  County Administrator David Sparks   
  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 
 
Absent: Commissioner Leo Bowman (Vacation) 
 
Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Adam Fyall, 
Sustainable Development Manager; Finance Manager Keith Mercer; Human Services Manager 
Ed Thornbrugh; Public Works Manager Steve Becken; Planning Manager Mike Shuttleworth; 
County Engineer Malcolm Bowie; Central Services Manager Randy Reid; District Court Judge 
Terry Tanner; Auditor Brenda Chilton; Sue Schuetze, Public Works; DPA Ryan Brown; Erhiza 
Rivera, Treasurer’s Office.  
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
The Minutes of April 10, 2012 were approved.   
 
Consent Agenda 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “o”, 
adding “p” (settlement agreement).  Chairman Beaver seconded and upon vote, the Board 
approved the following: 
 
Auditor 

a. Precinct Boundary Changes Within Benton County   
Central Services 

b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0502-101, Dept. 000 
Facilities 

c. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 110 
Human Services 

d. Agreement w/Domestic Violence Services 



 - 2 - 

Office of Public Defense 
e. District Court Indigent Defense Contract w/M Trombley, dba Rodriguez &  

Associates, P.S. 
f. Agreement w/M Trombley, dba Rodriguez & Associates, P.S. for Representation in 

Benton   County Cause #09-5-00075-0 
Planning 

g. Appointment of A Bergeson to the Benton County Board of Adjustment 
Prosecuting Attorney 

h. Settlement Agreement w/AFSCME Local 3962, Representing Crisis Response 
Public Works 

i. Interlocal Agreement w/Cities of Prosser and Benton City to Allocate  
SAFETEA-LU Funds 

j. Granting Franchise to Zayo Group, LLC 
k. Notice of Intent Application Form for Stormwater Permit for Piert Road Extension 

Project 
l. Authorization Schedule and Advertise a Bid Date for Piert Road Extension  

Sheriff 
m. Rescinding Resolution 2012-073; Purchase Authorization from 911 Supply, LLC 
n. Rescinding Resolution 2012-074; Purchase Authorization from Blumenthal Uniform Co.  
o. Amended and Restated Interlocal for the Tri-Cities Regional SWAT  

Commissioners 
p. Release of Claims, Settlement Agreement 

 
The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 9:05 a.m.  
 
Public Hearing - LightSpeed Network Franchise 
 
Sue Schuetze presented the franchise application request submitted by LightSpeed Network dba 
LS Networks for a fiber optic system within unincorporated Benton County road right of way.  
Ms. Schuetze said that based upon current franchise requirements, her office recommended 
approval subject to the listed conditions.   
 
As there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed. 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to approve the application for franchise filed by 
LightSpeed Network dba LS Networks with the listed conditions.  Chairman Beaver seconded 
and upon vote, the motion carried unanimously. 
 
Commissioner Assignment Update 
 
Commissioner Small said he worked with PEDA to prepare for the annual meeting held on April 
16 and it was well attended by State officials.  Additionally, he had a meeting at Dispatch and 
attended the Elected Officials meeting.  
 
Chairman Beaver reported on his meeting with Department of Ecology and said he wanted DPA 
Ryan Brown to review whether Benton County could participate in the Yakima water agreement.  



 - 3 - 

Commissioner Small commented that he spoke with a Yakima County Commissioner who was 
also unclear about the specific mission of this agreement. 
 
Vouchers 
 
Check Date: 04/05/2012 
Taxes #: 10112041-10112043 
Warrant #: 55285-55309 
Total all funds: $1,937,706.30 
 
Check Date:  04/05/2012 
Warrant #: 233867-233967 
Direct Deposit #: 72763-73366 
Total all funds: $2,110,603.50 
 
Check Date:  04/13/2012 
Warrant #: 55659-56209 
Transfer # 4/122, 01660412 
Total all funds: $810,698.65 
 
Check Date:  04/16/2012 
Warrant #: 233968-233985 
Direct Deposit #: 733731-73573 
Total all funds: $111,246.36 
 
Check Date:  04/16/2012 
Taxes #: 10112044 
Payroll Draw Deductions 
Total all funds: $33,300.86 
 
Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 
 
Resolutions 
 
2012-209: Precinct Boundary Changes Within Benton County   
2012-210: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0502-101, Dept. 000 
2012-211: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 110 
2012-212: Agreement w/Domestic Violence Services 
2012-213: District Court Indigent Defense Contract w/M Trombley, dba Rodriguez & 

Associates, P.S. 
2012-214: Agreement w/M Trombley, dba Rodriguez & Associates, P.S. for Representation 

in Benton County Cause #09-5-00075-0 
2012-215: Appointment of A Bergeson to the Benton County Board of Adjustment 
2012-216: Settlement Agreement w/AFSCME Local 3962, Representing Crisis Response 
2012-217: Interlocal Agreement w/Cities of Prosser and Benton City to Allocate SAFETEA-

LU Funds 



 - 4 - 

2012-218: Granting Franchise to Zayo Group, LLC 
2012-219: Notice of Intent Application Form for Stormwater Permit for Piert Road 

Extension Project 
2012-220 Authorization Schedule and Advertise a Bid Date for Piert Road Extension  
2012-221: Rescinding Resolution 2012-073; Purchase Authorization from 911 Supply, LLC 
2012-222: Rescinding Resolution 2012-074; Purchase Authorization from Blumenthal 

Uniform Co.  
2012-223: Amended and Restated Interlocal for the Tri-Cities Regional SWAT  
2012-224: Release in Full of All Claims, Settlement and Hold Harmless Agreement  
 
 
There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 9:08 
a.m.  
 
 
_______________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board      Chairman 
 



RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
 
 

IN THE MATTER OF REAPPOINTMENT TO THE BENTON COUNTY BOARD OF EQUALIZATION 
  
 
WHEREAS, the term for Larry Bateman is set to expire on April 30, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, Larry Bateman has expressed an interest and willingness to be re-appointed for an additional 
three-year term; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that Larry Bateman is hereby re-appointed to the Benton County Board of Equalization 
effective May 1, 2012 and said term expiring on April 30, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .  

               
Chairman of the Board  

 

               
Chairman Pro Tem  

 

           
Member 

 

                                                                                                                                        Constituting the Board of County 
Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      Commissioners of Benton County, 
 Clerk of the Board                    Washington 
 

 

CurrentUser
Text Box
a. Reappointment of L Bateman to Board of Equalization



CurrentUser
Text Box
b. Authorization to Purchase the Quest GroupWise Migrator for Exchange from CDW-G LLC







CurrentUser
Text Box
c. Setting Dates for 2013-2014 Biennium Budget Hearings



CurrentUser
Text Box
d. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 125



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, File, LSK Prepared by: K. Mercer

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN

CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000-101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 125

to DEPARTMENT 115.

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that

funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.





CurrentUser
Text Box
e. Payment Authorization to Design West Architects, PA for Architectural Services







 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 3-13-12        
Subject: Agreement with 

City of 
Kennewick 

Prepared by:       M. Phillips  
Reviewed by:       

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract __x__ 
Pass Resolution  __x__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda            _x___  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION 
 
In order to keep up with growth and changes to its landbase, infrastructure, and associated public services, 
it is essential that Benton County continually maintains a current GIS base and periodically updates its 
digital orthophotography. Since the digital orthophotography has not been updated since 2008, the Benton 
County GIS Department, along with the Franklin County Public Works Department, solicited proposals for 
2012 color digital orthophotography for both counties and for the Hanford Federal Reservation, as well as 
high-resolution orthophotography for the cities of Kennewick, Richland, West Richland, and Pasco. By 
combining resources in a joint project such as this, participants will be able to acquire high quality color 
digital orthophotography at a substantially reduced rate from that which would be incurred if participants 
were to contract separately. 
 
Per the terms of this Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement, Kennewick shall reimburse Benton County 
for  the cost of the 4-inch or better pixel resolution color digital orthophotography within its urban growth 
areas in the amount not to exceed a sum of Seven Thousand Six Hundred and Sixty-nine dollars ($7,669). 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Pass the resolution. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Project expenses up to $7,669.00 plus WSST, if applicable, to be reimbursed by the City of Kennewick back 
to Current Expense (0000-101). No supplement required. 
 
MOTION 
 

CurrentUser
Text Box
f. Intergovernmental Cooperative Agreement w/City of Kennewick for Orthophotography



 Original: GIS Department                                                                                                                                            Mary Phillips 
 CC: Auditor  

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY,  WASHINGTON 
 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL COO PERATION AGREEMENT WITH 
THE CITY OF KENNEWICK FOR HIGH RESOLUTION COLOR DIG ITAL ORTHOPHOTOGRAPHY 
FOR 2012 FOR THE AREA WITHIN THE CITY OF KENNEWICK’ S URBAN GROWTH BOUNDARY.  
 
 
WHEREAS, per the Interlocal Cooperation Act, as amended, and codified in Chapter 39.34 of the 
Revised Code of Washington provides for interlocal cooperation between governmental agencies; and  
 
WHEREAS, in order to keep up with growth and the associated public services, Benton County 
continually updates its GIS base and periodically updates its digital orthophotography base; and  
 
WHEREAS, Benton County will be updating its digital orthophotography base in 2012; and  
 
WHEREAS, both Benton County and the City of Kennewick have the capability to independently acquire 
and/or produce 2012 ortho-imagery, but if each acted independently, the results would involve significant 
redundancies and increased costs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Kennewick has requested that Benton County provide and deliver to them 4-inch 
or better pixel resolution ortho-imagery within the city’s urban growth area; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Kennewick has agreed to pay Benton County the amount of the cost of the 
delivery of the 4-inch or better pixel resolution ortho-imagery within the city’s urban growth area, in an 
amount not to exceed a sum of Seven Thousand Six Hundred and Sixty-nine dollars ($7,669); NOW, 
THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED , the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington hereby 
agree to approve this Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement with the City of Kennewick; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED  the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman to sign the Intergovernmental 
Cooperation Agreement attached hereto; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED  the term of the attached contract commences upon execution by both 
parties and shall expire upon the completion of the project. 
 
 
 
 
Dated this  __________________ day of _____________, 2012. 
 
 

 ___________________________                   
 Chairman of the Board 

 
  

 ___________________________                
 Member 

 
 

 __________________________                
 Member 

  
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 
Attest....................................................... 
                     Clerk of the Board 



INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT 
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is between Benton County, a political subdivision of the State of 
Washington, and the City of Kennewick, a municipal corporation. 
 
WITNESSETH: 
 
WHEREAS, the Interlocal Cooperation Act, as amended, and codified in Chapter 39.34 
of the Revised Code of Washington provides for interlocal cooperation between 
governmental agencies; and 
 
WHEREAS, the purpose of this agreement is to cooperatively undertake and complete 
an aerial photography and orthophoto mapping project of BENTON COUNTY, including 
the areas lying within the CITY OF KENNEWICK; and 
 
WHEREAS, this project will benefit both, because the COUNTY has a need to update 
its ortho-imagery of the County in 2012, and the CITY OF KENNEWICK has a need to 
update its ortho-imagery of those areas lying within the limits of the Kennewick Urban 
Growth Boundary in 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, both parties have the capability to independently acquire and/or produce 
2012 ortho-imagery, but if each acted independently, the results would involve 
significant redundancies and increased costs; and 
 
WHEREAS, a major goal of this Agreement is to reduce and/or eliminate duplication 
and save governmental costs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the COUNTY requires ortho-imagery to be delivered with 12-inch pixel 
resolution; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CITY OF KENNEWICK has requested that the COUNTY provide and 
deliver to them the ortho-imagery of the Kennewick Urban Growth Boundary with 4-inch 
or better pixel resolution; and  
 
WHEREAS, the COUNTY will be entering into a personal services contract with 
MAPCON, INC., for the purpose of undertaking and completing an aerial photography 
and orthophoto mapping project of Benton County; and 
 
WHEREAS, the COUNTY is willing to include, as part of the contract to be entered with 
MAPCON, INC., all provisions necessary to deliver ortho-imagery of the areas lying 
within the Kennewick Urban Growth Boundary to the CITY OF KENNEWICK at the 
requested 4-inch or better pixel resolution; and 



WHEREAS, the CITY OF KENNEWICK has agreed to pay the COUNTY the amount of 
the cost of the delivery of ortho-imagery with 4-inch or better pixel resolution; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. The COUNTY shall provide all data and resources necessary for MAPCON, 
INC., to complete the work as outlined in the personal services contract to be 
entered with MAPCON, INC., for the purpose of undertaking and completing an 
aerial photography and orthophoto mapping project of Benton County. 

 
2. The COUNTY shall provide all preliminary data received from MAPCON, INC., 

for the Kennewick Urban Growth Boundary to the CITY OF KENNEWICK for 
their review and comment. 
 

3. The COUNTY shall relay the CITY OF KENNEWICK’s concerns regarding 
accuracies and visual issues such as seams or structures with edge or 
displacement effects to MAPCON, INC and assure that such concerns are 
addressed in the final product produced by The COUNTY’S contract with 
MAPCON, INC.” 

 
4. The COUNTY shall deliver to the CITY OF KENNEWICK a copy of all project 

deliverables across the entire extent of the project area, including both project 
documentation and project data, as described in the personal services contract to 
be entered with MAPCON, INC. 

 
5. The CITY OF KENNEWICK shall reimburse the COUNTY in the amount of the 

cost of the delivery of ortho-imagery with 4-inch or better pixel resolution for the 
area described in Exhibit A (Attached).  The amount to be reimbursed by the 
CITY OF KENNEWICK to the COUNTY shall not exceed a sum of Seven 
Thousand Six Hundred and Sixty-nine dollars ($7,669). 

 
6. The COUNTY shall submit an invoice to the CITY OF KENNEWICK for 

reimbursement to the COUNTY upon the successful delivery of the project 
documentation and project data. 





BENTON
COUNTY

GEOGRAPHIC
INFORMATION

SYSTEMS
DEPARTMENT

Benton County does not warrant, guarantee, or accept liability for accuracy, precision or 
completeness of any information shown hereon or for any inferences made therefrom.  Any 
use made of this information is solely at the risk of the user.  Benton County makes no 
warranty, expressed or implied, and any oral or written statement by any employee of Benton 
County or agents thereof to the contrary is void and ultra vires.  The information shown herein 
is a product of the Benton County Geographic Information Systems, and is prepared for 
presentation purposes only.

EXHIBIT A

KENNEWICK URBAN
PROJECT AREA

Legend

4-inch Pixel Resolution Project Area

City Limits

Urban Growth Area

County Boundary

Highway or Interstate

River

0.0 0.5 1.0 1.5 2.0

Miles



CurrentUser
Text Box
g. Contract Amendment w/Desertgreen Lawn and Tree Care, LLC









 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM 

 
Meeting Date: 4/17/12 
Subject:  Employee of the Month  
Prepared by: L. Wingfield   
        

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract             
Pass Resolution            
Pass Ordinance              
Pass Motion              
Other     X         

 
 
Consent Agenda      X     
Public Hearing              
1st Discussion             
2nd Discussion              
Other              

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Approval of Employee of the Month for May 2012. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Same as above.   
 
  
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Request signatures approving Employee of the Month for May 2012. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
No fiscal impact. 
 
 
 
 

CurrentUser
Text Box
h. Employee of the Month Award



CurrentUser
Text Box
i. Amendment to Interlocal Agreement w/Franklin County for Engineering Services







CurrentUser
Text Box
j. Plat Sign Plans Approval for The Ridge at Reata West



CurrentUser
Text Box
k. Contract Termination w/Keefe Commissary Network; Rescind Resolutions 08-1004 & 11-751





CurrentUser
Text Box
l. Contract w/Keefe Group LLC for Inmate Commissary Goods







CurrentUser
Text Box
m. Appreciation Letter to WSU, Pullman Office





CurrentUser
Text Box
Feasibility Study for Moderate Risk Waste Facility – D Holmes


	Agenda Minutes 041712
	CA - BOE a
	CA - Central Services b
	CA - Commissioners c
	CA - Commissioners d
	CA - Commissioners e
	CA - GIS f
	CA - Juvenile g
	CA - Personnel h
	SUMMARY
	FISCAL IMPACT


	CA - Public Works i
	CA - Public Works j
	CA - Sheriff k
	CA - Sheriff l
	CA - WSU m
	Timed - Feasibility Study
	042412.pdf
	AGENDA
	Regular Board Meeting
	Tuesday, April 24, 2012
	Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA
	Personnel
	h.  Employee of the Month Award




